





[image: ]Present:

Wednesday, December 17, 2025 at 03:00 PM Council Chambers
47, Wilmot St. S. Drumbo, ON
Streamed live to Township of Blandford-Blenheim YouTube Channel

Mayor M. Peterson, Councillor D. Barnes, Councillor N. Demarest, Councillor B. Banbury and Councillor T. Young

Staff:
CAO Brick, Clerk Matheson, Drainage Superintendent Degier, Director of Protective Services Davidson, Director of Public Works Borton, Manager of Community Services Baer, Planner Robson, Deputy Clerk Brandt.

1. Welcome

2. Call to Order
3. Approval of the Agenda RESOLUTION 2025-12-17-01
Moved by - Councillor Demarest Seconded by - Councillor Young

Be it hereby resolved that the agenda for December 17, 2025, Regular Meeting of Council be adopted as printed, and circulated.

Carried

4. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest

5. Minutes
5.a December 3, 2025, Minutes of Council RESOLUTION 2025-12-17-02
Moved by - Councillor Barnes Seconded by - Councillor Banbury

Be it hereby resolved that the minutes of the December 3, 2025, Regular Meeting of Council be adopted, as printed and circulated.

Carried

6. Business Arising from the Minutes
None.

7. Public Meetings

7.a Public Meeting under the Planning Act, Zone Change
7.a.1 ZN1-25-07, Township of Blandford-Blenheim (ARUs) RESOLUTION 2025-12-17-03
Moved by - Councillor Demarest Seconded by - Councillor Barnes

Be it hereby resolved that Council move into Public Meeting under the Planning Act to consider application for Zone Change ZN1-25-07 for the Township of Blandford-Blenheim, regarding ARUs; and further,
That Mayor Peterson Chair the Public Meeting.

Carried
Policy Planner Yager presented the report, recommending approval-in-principle. Bev Beaton, Princeton resident spoke regarding the application, specifically the inflexibility of the proposed by-law for ARUs in the Villages of Bright, Drumbo and Plattsville. Members of Council spoke to the application. No one in attendance spoke further for or against the application. 

RESOLUTION 2025-12-17-04
Moved by - Councillor Demarest Seconded by - Councillor Young

Be it hereby resolved that the Public Meeting by adjourned and that the Regular Meeting of Council reconvene.

Carried
RESOLUTION 2025-12-17-05
Moved by - Councillor Demarest Seconded by - Councillor Young
Township of Blandford-Blenheim Council Minutes


Be it hereby resolved that the Council of the Township of Blandford-Blenheim approve-in-principle the proposed Zoning By-Law amendment (File No. ZN 1-25-07) to introduce amendments to Township Zoning By-Law No. 1360-2002 and that the By-law be brought back to a subsequent Council meeting for adoption.

Carried

8. Delegations/Presentations

9. Correspondence

9.a Specific

9.a.1 Grand River Conservation Authority, re: Bill 68 and Proposed Consolidation of Conservation Authorities
RESOLUTION 2025-12-17-06
Moved by - Councillor Demarest Seconded by - Councillor Young

WHEREAS the Government of Ontario recently approved Bill 68, which establishes the Ontario Provincial Conservation Agency;
AND WHEREAS the Government of Ontario is proposing the consolidation of the province's 36 conservation authorities into seven regional conservation authorities, including the Grand River Conservation Authority(GRCA), which will be amalgamated amongst eight current authorities to become part of the Lake Erie Regional Conservation Authority (LERCA);
AND WHEREAS the 38 municipalities within the GRCA watershed boundaries today and the 81 municipalities that are proposed to make up the LERCA in 2027 will be levied to fund both the regional conservation authority as well as the provincial conservation agency;
AND WHEREAS the new organizations will result in the degradation of local governance, local fiscal accountability, local service delivery, local environmental focus and unprecedented funding by local municipalities of both a large regional authority and a provincial agency;
AND WHEREAS the GRCA Board of Directors has responded to Bill 68 and the proposal for Conservation Authorities consolidation with a constructive and thoughtful alternative that retains local governance, local service delivery, local environmental focus and local fiscal accountability while responding constructively to the Government of Ontario's concerns about accountability, planning and responsiveness;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Township of Blandford-Blenheim calls on the Minister of Environment, Conservation and Parks and the Chief Conservation Executive meet GRCA representatives to review the GRCA alternative proposal to Conservation Authorities consolidation;
AND THAT the Minister and the Chief Conservation Executive seriously consider the GRCA proposal for conservation authorities as it enunciates a path forward that will address the Government's concerns most democratically and productively;
AND THAT this motion be circulated to the Premier of Ontario, Minister of Environment, Conservation & Parks, Chief Conservation Executive and local Members of Provincial Parliament for their information and action, where appropriate.

Carried

9.a.2 Upper Thames River Conservation Authority, re: Bill 68 and ERO Posting 025-1257 Proposed Boundaries for the Regional Consolidation of Ontario’s Conservation Authorities
RESOLUTION 2025-12-17-07
Moved by - Councillor Banbury Seconded by - Councillor Barnes

WHEREAS the Conservation Authorities Act (1946) enables municipalities to establish local conservation authorities, and when municipalities choose to form such authorities, they assume responsibility for governance and funding through the appointment of a Board of Directors and the provision of an annual levy to cover expenses;
AND WHEREAS the Township of Blandford-Blenheim established the Upper Thames River Conservation Authority with other consenting municipalities within the watershed (initially formed in 1947);
AND WHEREAS local municipalities currently provide approximately 35% of total conservation authority funding, while the Province of Ontario provides approximately 2% (2026 budget);
AND WHEREAS municipalities have governed their respective conservation authorities for decades, tailoring programs and services to local watershed needs, maintaining accountable service standards, and ensuring fair and predictable costs for ratepayers;
AND WHEREAS conservation authorities collectively own and manage thousands of acres of land. Many of these properties were entrusted to the UTRCA for long-term protection, stewardship, and the public good, with the expectation that such lands would be cared for by locally governed

conservation authorities;
AND WHEREAS Bill 68 (Schedule 3) proposes the creation of the Ontario Provincial Conservation Agency, a Crown corporation that would assume governance responsibilities and consolidate Ontario's 36 conservation authorities into seven regional authorities, with municipal cost apportionment yet to be defined;
AND WHEREAS the Province already possesses the authority to establish overarching legislation, regulations, and standards through the Conservation Authorities Act and the Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks;
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Township of Blandford-Blenheim calls on the Government of Ontario to maintain local, independent, municipally governed, watershed-based conservation authorities to ensure strong local representation in decisions related to municipal levies, community-focused service delivery, and the protection and management of conservation lands;
AND FURTHER THAT while the Township of Blandford-Blenheim supports provincial goals tor consistent permit approval processes, shared services, and digital modernization, imposing a new top-down agency structure without strong local accountability and governance risks creating unnecessary cost, red tape, and bureaucracy, thereby undermining efficiency and responsiveness to local community needs;
AND FURTHER THAT the Township of Blandford-Blenheim supports efforts to balance expertise, capacity, and program delivery across the province, and requests that the Province work collaboratively with municipalities and local conservation authorities to determine the most effective level of strategic consolidation to achieve both provincial and local objectives.
AND FURTHER THAT a copy of this resolution be sent to:
· the Ontario Minister of Environment, Conservation, and Parks,
· local MPPs,
· Association of Municipalities of Ontario,
· Rural Ontario Municipal Association,
· area Indigenous communities,
· all municipalities,
· Conservation Authorities, and
· Conservation Ontario.

Carried

9.b General

9.b.1 Township of Zorra re: Rural School Closures
9.b.2 Township of Zorra re: Soil Health in Canada RESOLUTION 2025-12-17-08
Moved by - Councillor Demarest Seconded by - Councillor Young

Be it hereby resolved that the general correspondence items be received as information.

Carried

10. Staff Reports

10.a Ray Belanger, Chief Building Official, CBO-25-12 - Monthly Report to Council
RESOLUTION 2025-12-17-09
Moved by - Councillor Demarest Seconded by - Councillor Young

Be it hereby resolved that Report CBO-25-12 be received as information.

Carried

10.b Drew Davidson, Director of Protective Services, FC-25-20 - November Monthly Report
RESOLUTION 2025-12-17-10
Moved by - Councillor Banbury Seconded by - Councillor Young

Be it hereby resolved that Report FC-25-20 be received as information.

Carried

10.c Denise Krug, Director of Finance/Treasurer, TR-25-15 - 2026 Municipal Insurance
RESOLUTION 2025-12-17-11
Moved by - Councillor Demarest Seconded by - Councillor Barnes

Be it hereby resolved that Report TR-25-15 be received as information; and further,

That Council instruct the Treasurer to bind the renewal for the Township’s municipal insurance with Intact Public Entities.

Carried

10.d Sarah Matheson, Director of Corporate Services/Clerk, DC-25-20 - Municipal Alcohol Policy Revision
RESOLUTION 2025-12-17-12
Moved by - Councillor Young Seconded by - Councillor Banbury

Be it hereby resolved that Report DC-25-20 be received as information; and,

That Council adopt the revisions to the Municipal Alcohol Policy, as presented in Report DC-25-20.

Carried

11. Reports from Council Members
Mayor Peterson referred to the details of the Drumbo Santa Parade scheduled for December 19, 2025, beginning at 6:00 p.m.

12. Unfinished Business
None.

13. Motions and Notices of Motion
None.

14. New Business
None.

15. Closed Session
15.a Closed Session Minutes from November 19, 2025 RESOLUTION 2025-12-17-13
Moved by - Councillor Barnes Seconded by - Councillor Banbury
Be it hereby resolved that the Minutes from the November 19, 2025 Closed Session be adopted, as printed and circulated.

Carried

15.b CAO-25-35 - Council Education & Training Session (3:00 p.m.) RESOLUTION 2025-12-17-14
Moved by - Councillor Barnes Seconded by - Councillor Young

Be it hereby resolved that Council move into Closed Session under the authority of Section 239 of the Municipal Act at 3:02 p.m. to discuss:
a. CAO-25-35, the education or training of members of the council, a local board or committee [s. 239 (3.1)].
Re: Council Education & Training Session.

Carried
RESOLUTION 2025-12-17-15
Moved by - Councillor Young Seconded by - Councillor Banbury
Be it hereby resolved that Council does now adjourn from Closed Session and resume into Open Session at 4:01 p.m.

Carried
RESOLUTION 2025-12-17-16
Moved by - Councillor Demarest Seconded by - Councillor Young

Be it hereby resolved that Council receive information as presented regarding Report CAO-25-35 – Council Education & Training Session.

Carried
15.c CAO-25-36 - CAO Annual Performance Review RESOLUTION 2025-12-17-17
Moved by - Councillor Young Seconded by - Councillor Banbury

Be it hereby resolved that Council move into Closed Session under the authority of Section 239 of the Municipal Act at 4:57 p.m. to discuss:
a. CAO-25-36, personal matters about an identifiable individual, including municipal employees [s. 239 (2)(b)].
Re: CAO Annual Performance Review.

Carried
RESOLUTION 2025-12-17-18
Moved by - Councillor Demarest Seconded by - Councillor Young

Be it hereby resolved that Council does now adjourn from Closed Session and resume into Open Session at 5:08 p.m.


Carried
RESOLUTION 2025-12-17-19
Moved by - Councillor Demarest Seconded by - Councillor Barnes

Be it hereby resolved that Council provide direction regarding Report CAO-25-36 – CAO Annual Performance Review.

Carried

16. By-laws
16.a Bylaw 2525-2025, Being a By-law to Confirm the Proceedings of Council RESOLUTION 2025-12-17-20
Moved by - Councillor Banbury Seconded by - Councillor Young

Be it hereby resolved that the following by-law be read a first and second time:
a) By-law 2525-2025, being a by-law to confirm the proceedings of Council.

Carried
RESOLUTION 2025-12-17-21
Moved by - Councillor Demarest Seconded by - Councillor Barnes

Be it hereby resolved that the following by-law be read a third and final time:
a) By-law 2525-2025, being a by-law to confirm the proceedings of Council.

Carried

17. Other
None.
18. Adjournment and Next Meeting RESOLUTION 2025-12-17-22
Moved by - Councillor Demarest Seconded by - Councillor Barnes

Whereas business before Council has been completed at 5:09 p.m.;
Be it hereby resolved that Council adjourn to meet again on Wednesday, January 14, 2026 at 4:00 p.m.

Carried





Mark Peterson, Mayor




Sarah Matheson, Clerk
image1.jpeg




